YON. DOMINICA AGRICULTURAL
GDD INDUSTRIAL AND
N DEVELOPMENT BANK

“THE FINANCIAL ENGINE OF ECONOMIC GROWTH”

Q

ANNUAL REPORT 2010






OUR MISSION

To be a leader and catalyst in the economic and social development of the Commonwealth of Dominica,
by being a facilitator for investments, a financier and a partner with the private sector while adhering to
the highest principles of good corporate governance, exercising prudent and responsible financial
management and promoting environmental sustainability.

OUR VISION

To be a top rated development finance institution in two years.



ADDRESS TO THE NATION

By Honourable Roosevelt Skerrit, Prime Minister, On the occasion of the 31st Anniversary of independence

“First, | am delighted to announce that a reconfigured and reenergised Agricultural, Industrial and
Development Bank, will become the financial engine for driving our growth strategy.”
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Honourable Roosevelt Skerrit
Prime Minister and Minister for Finance,
Social Security and National Security

Prime Minister’s Office
Financial Centre, Kennedy Avenue
Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica

September 30, 2010

Dear Prime Minister,

Pursuant to Section 22[1], Chapter 74:03 of the Laws of the Commonwealth of Dominica [1990 Revised Edition]
| have the honour to submit to you the Annual Report on the operations and Audited Financial Statements of the
Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2010.

Yours faithfully,

H ﬁ“‘i Jrdx |
SN

DOMINICA AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRIAL AND DEVELOPMENT BANK

MR. AMBROSE M.J. SYLVESTER
CHAIRMAN
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

BANDES Banco de Desarrollo Econ mico GDP Gross Domestic Product
y Social de Venezuela IAS International Accounting Standards
CDB Caribbean Development Bank IFRS International Financial

- . , Reporting Standards
DAIDB Dominica Agricultural Industrial

IFRIC International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee

& Development Bank

DBPL Dominica Banana Producers Ltd.
NBD National Bank of Dominica, formerly
EC Eastern Caribbean National Commercial Bank
ECCB Eastern Caribbean Central Bank NP Non-performing
ECCU Eastern Caribbean Currency Union SFR-D Special Fund Resources - Dominica
. SMP Special Mortgage Programme
EU European Union P 999 9
SPA Systems and Process Assurance Review
EURO Monetary Unit of the European Union
Us$ United States dollar
FDSL Financial Data Systems Limited
$ represents Eastern Caribbean dollars throughout
FEEF Foreign Exchange Equalization Fund unless stated otherwise
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Rosamund Edwards Martin Charles Simpson Gregoire
Director from March 9, 2010 Director until March 8, 2010 Director from March 9, 2010

Deputy Chairman from March 9, 2010
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Elford Henry Hubert Joseph Leon Leblanc
Director Director Director

Colbert Pinard Reuben Thomas Roan Thomas
Director Director Board Secretary
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM AND STAFF
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Senior Manager, Senior Manager, Senior Manager, Human Resource
Finance and Accounts Information Systems and Administration

Photograph missing for
Anthony Commodore, Legal Counsel.
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Ms. M. Robinson
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Ms. S. Victor
Receptionist

Corporate Affairs
Mrs. E. Harris Charles
Executive Manager,
Corporate Affairs

Mrs. J. Dechausay Titre
Special Projects/
Communications Coordinator

MIS Unit

Mrs. A. Coipel
Senior Manager,
Information Systems

Mrs. L. Gonzalez-Peltier John
Applications Support Analyst, MIS

Mr. K. Sylvester
Technical Officer, MIS

Industrial Estate Unit

Mr. I. Williams
Manager, IEU

Mr. A. H. LeBlanc
Assistant Manager,
IEU/ Technical Advisor

Mrs. R. Hyacinth
Administrative Officer

Mr. John O garro
Maintenance Officer

Legal Division
Mr. A. Commodore
Legal Counsel

Ms. N. Winston
Legal Officer

Finance and Accounts Division
Ms. V. E Abraham

Senior Manager,

Finance and Accounts

Mrs. I. Bruno
Assistant Manager,
Finance and Accounts

Ms. A. Dupigny

Mr. K. Shillingford
Senior Officer,
Finance and Accounts

Ms. H. Sylvester
Mr. M. Allan
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Mrs. U. McDowell-Job

Senior Manager, Human
Resource and Administration

Ms. R. Thomas

Assistant Manager, Human
Resource and Administration/
Board Secretary

Ms. G. Edwards
Registry Officer

Mr. G. Nicholls
Office Attendant
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CONTACT DETAILS

Dominica Agricultural Industrial & Development Bank.

Corner of Charles Ave and Rawles Lane, Goodwill,
Commonwealth of Dominica

Telephone: 767-448-2853
Facsimile: 767-448-4903

E-mail: aidbank@cwdom.dm
Website: www.aidbank.com
Solicitors

Alick Lawrence, Chambers, Roseau.
7 Old Street, Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Pointe Seraphine, P.O. Box 195, Castries, St. Lucia

Bankers

National Bank of Dominica.
64 Hillsborough St., P.O. Box 271,
Roseau, Commonwealth of Dominica
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT 2009/10

The period under review marked the first year of the five-
year Strategic and Operational Plan [2009-14] of the
Bank which was approved in June 2009.

Based on the results for the year, it is reasonable to
conclude that the Bank has performed creditably,
achieving, and in a number of instances, surpassing the
targets, which were set in the Plan.

Specifically, we highlight the following:

» Loan Approvals for the year totalled $41.9 million,
the highest ever recorded in the 39-year history of
the institution.

Consistent with Government s priority objective for
growth and development, as articulated in its Growth
and Social Protection Strategy, loans in the Tourism
and Industry Sectors combined accounted for 70.2
per cent of total approvals.

This level of approvals was three times that recorded
for the preceding financial year ended June 30, 2009;
two times the average level approved for the past
ten [10] years and greater than the budget for the
year by 18.0 per cent.

This was achieved notwithstanding a three-month
delay in the implementation of the Strategic and
Operational Plan, which became fully operational in
October 2009.

» Disbursements of loans for the year totalled $21.05
million, again, this represents the highest level
recorded in any one year in the history of the Bank
and approximately 50 per cent above that recorded
for the preceding financial year.

The value of disbursements was 27.4 per cent below

the budget for the year primarily owing to the time

devoted to the introduction of new and improved
loan agreements and security documentation.

These improvements have placed the Bank in a stronger
position to protect its advances whenever borrowers
default.

» The mobilisation of funding showed positive results

for the year. In the past the lack of funds was a major
factor inhibiting the Bank s progress and growth.

In December 2009, the Caribbean Development
Bank [CDB] approved a Line of Credit for the Bank
for US$8.0 million. This was the first loan obtained
from the CDB in eight [8] years.

In June 2010, the European Investment Bank
[EIB] approved a Line of Credit for the Bank for
US$10.04 million.
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The last loan obtained by the Bank from the EIB was
in 1998 some twelve years ago.

The two Lines of Credit approved for the Bank during
the year, totalling US$18.04 million is in excess of the
annual average of US$ 16.0 million projected for each
year of the five-year Strategic and Operational Plan.

The Non-Performing Loan ratio declined from 18.59
per cent in the previous year to 15.9 per cent at the
end of the financial year. Although the bank did not
achieve its target set for the financial year we
welcome the reduction from the previous year.

In fact, this level is the lowest achieved by the Bank
in the nine years since this ratio has been recorded.

The Bank has re-established itself as a credible
institution in the financial architecture of the
Commonwealth of Dominica.

The forging of partnerships with agencies of the state
and private sector financial institutions in the country
[the Invest Dominica Authority (IDA) and the National
Bank of Dominica (NBD)] are two of the initiatives
which have engendered new confidence in the
institution and has solidified its repositioning.

Positive proof of the efficacy of this repositioning is
the number of loan enquires and applications which
have been and are being made to the Bank from
entities and individuals who now consider the AID
Bank as their financing partner.

» The credibility and standing of the Bank has also

improved during the past financial year and is evidenced
by its ability to obtain funding from external sources
after close to a decade of being unable so to do.

Of significance to its financial condition was the
innovative proposal, which was accepted by the
Government, for the assets of the Industrial Estate
Unit [IEU] to be transferred to the Bank.

This transaction, which will be finalised in the financial
year ending June 2011, is projected to increase the
Bank’s net worth significantly. This will allow for the
institution to not only meet and surpass a number of
prudential banking metrics, but will provide a stronger
capital base, which could be leveraged to obtain
additional funding.

The acceptance by the Dominica Social Security
[DSS] of a concomitant proposal from the Bank to
release the Government from the guarantees on
loans to the Bank and for their replacement by first
charges on a number of the properties transferred
has made it possible for the Government of the
Commonwealth of Dominica to provide the guarantee
required for the loan from the EIB without a negative
impact on the country s Debt to GDP Ratio.

A successful restructuring of the institution was
completed during the year. In addition to making the
Bank more responsive to the needs of its borrowers,
both existing and potential, the exercise has resulted
ina higher level of morale within the staff establishment.

During the 2008/09 financial year, the AID Bank, the
first Development Bank in the region to undertake a
credit rating, received from the Caribbean Information
and Credit Rating Services Ltd, [CariCRIS] a rating of
CariBB+. The Bank took the bold step to publicise
the rating, and as a result is subject to annual reviews.

For the period under review, an assessment of the
Bank was again undertaken by CariCRIS and the
Rating Agency reaffirmed its rating of CariBB+.

Very importantly it must be noted, that among other
things, credit ratings have the potential to unlock
funding from a number of lending institutions.

The latest review was funded in part by the Caribbean
Development Bank.
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Financial Performance

The financial performance of the Bank for the financial
year 2009/2010, while below the projections for the
period is considered commendable given the delay in
the implementation of the Strategic and Operational
Plan, the need to write down a substantial portion of its
investment in a financial institution and increases in
operating expenses attendant on the restructuring
exercise.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2010, total income
for the year reached $12.33 million excluding the foreign
exchange gain of $0.39 million.

This was approximately 10.72 per cent above the
comparable figure of $11.14 milion recorded and
restated for the preceding financial year.

Notwithstanding the provision for the impairment in
the Bank’s investment in a financial institution of
$633,000, the Profit realised from operations for the
year, totalled $1.59 million. This was approximately 23
per cent greater than that recorded for the preceding
financial year.

This year’s Net Profit increased as a result of the Bank
benefitting from a refund of $921,723 negotiated with
the European Investment Bank consequent on prior
year s overpayment on principal.

Operating expenses, increased by approximately 4.69
per cent compared with the preceding financial year,
to $8.52 million. This was substantially as a result of
the restructuring of the institution and the concomitant
adjustment in the emoluments of staff.

Shareholders equity increased by 4.29 per cent to
$32.56 million compared with the preceding year, while
retained earnings also showed positive movements
increasing by approximately 14 per cent over the
previous year to $7.02 million.

Rural Farm Project with Green house, Piggery and Farm House, Pond Case
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Left: Infrastructural Development, Pond Case to Melville Hall Road Improvement Project. Center and Right: Construction of Inn at Castle Bruce

Outlook

The global economic outlook still remains uncertain,
with the pace of economic recovery being slower than
anticipated. Amidst these challenges, development
banks, as financial intermediaries, have a key role to play
in promoting growth and development by channelling
funds to the private sector and to a lesser extent to the
public sector primarily in terms of funding enabling
infrastructural development.

In order to accomplish these development objectives, the
AID Bank remains committed that its operations are
based on sound financial management systems which
practice good banking discipline in terms of risk
management thereby resulting in an improved profitability
and financial position.

We wish to inform shareholders and all stakeholders
that the strategies articulated in the AID Bank’s five year
Strategic and Operational plan 2009 2014 are
designed to achieve this.

With the record levels of loan approvals and
disbursements for the year, the healthy pipeline of
project enquires and loan applications, the reduction in
the Non-Performing loan portfolio and the successful
efforts at mobilising funding, it is reasonable to accept
that the AID Bank is on a path to improve its financial
performance in the out years and will achieve the target
set in its Five-year Strategic Plan of becoming financially
self sustaining within three years.

We are also confident that as we continue to build on
the platform that we have created, we will achieve the
results that will have a positive impact on the country s
economic growth and on employment creation.

It is reasonable to conclude therefore, notwithstanding
the challenges and obstacles faced from both within
and outside the institution, during the financial year, that
the Bank through the implementation of a carefully
crafted strategy of repositioning, re-engineering and
refocusing is now on a trajectory to fulfilling its mission:

To be a leader and catalyst in the economic and social
development of the Commonwealth of Dominica by
being a facilitator for investment, financier, and a partner
with the private sector while adhering to the highest
principles of good corporate governance, exercising
prudent and responsible financial management and
promoting environmental sustainability .
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Construction of Resort and Spa, Anse De Mai
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DAIDB FIVE-YEAR HIGHLIGHTS
AT A GLANCE 2006-2010

INCOME STATEMENT il = | e | S
Interest Income 10,307 10,609 11,685 12,024 10,476
© Interest Expense 3,703 4,076 4,459 4,479 4,631
e Net Interest Income 6,604 6,533 7,226 7,546 5,845
O Other Income net 2,417 1,235 626 673 977
e Operating Income 9,021 7,768 7,852 8,218 6,823
o Staff Costs 3,126 2,548 2,360 2,292 2,303
o Administrative Costs 1,692 1,516 2,723 2,310 1,684
O Provisions 2,617 2,418 1,948 1,854 1,991
e Net Profit 1,585 1,286 821 1,763 844
Assets
Cash and Balances with Central Bank 23 3,112 1,039 1,032 1,003
O Deposit with Other Banks 6,309 3,689 4,935 6,930 5145
O Investments [Net of Impairment] 4,649 5,920 5,793 5,648 6,664
o Loans [Net of Impairment] 116,549 112,686 114,169 111,754 106,403
O Other 5,009 5,246 5,408 5,687 6,103
e Total Assets 132,538 130,652 131,343 131,050 125,318
Liabilities
Deposits 10,824 10,167 13,182 12,832 11,064
O Borrowings 82,892 84,094 83,979 85,154 87,883
O Other Liabilities 6,258 5,168 3,951 3,240 2,985
O Equity 32,563 31,222 30,232 29,823 23,386
e Total Liabilities and Equity 132,538 130,652 131,343 131,050 125,318
OTHER INFORMATION i [ |
Loan Approvals 41,910 18,456 20,357 20,025 15,042
Loan Disbursements 21,050 14,282 18,683 16,271 16,164
Estimated Number of Jobs Created 805 487 701 780 675
Return on Equity 4.87% 412% 2.72% 5.91% 3.61%
Return on Assets 1.20% 0.98% 0.63% 1.38% 0.67%
Loan Provisions as % of Portfolio 712% 7.49% 6.46% 9.59% 11.01%

Loan Provisions as % of Non-performing Portfolio 46.95% 42.48% 32.40% 37.85% 32.75%
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PART 1
THE ECONOMY OF DOMINICA
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THE ECONOMY OF DOMINICA'

In 2009, the global downturn adversely affected the
Dominican economy through a decline in tourism
receipts by 16 per cent and reductions in Foreign Direct
Investment and remittances by 51 per cent and 18 per
cent respectively. Consequently, real GDP was estimated
to have contracted by 0.3 per cent, reflecting a less
severe impact of the global downturn than other Eastern
Caribbean Currency Union [ECCU] economies.

Dominicas relatively stronger economic performance
during the recent global downturn has been attributed
to its less-developed tourism sector and greater
dependence on agriculture.

The resilience of the economy owes much to Dominica s
relatively stronger fiscal position than other ECCU
members and greater progress with debt reduction. Its
stronger macroeconomic framework has resulted from
more prudent fiscal management, in the years following
the Economic Stabilization Programme.

Government s successful negotiation of grant resources
has also enabled the country to undertake counter-
cyclical measures, to address the adverse effects of the
global downturn.

With respect to prices, just prior to the recent global
crisis, there had been an increase in inflation driven
mainly by international fuel and food prices. Annual
average inflation which was 1.9 per cent during 2001 —
2007, increased to 6.4 per cent in 2008 and slowed to
an average of almost zero per cent in 2009.

The external current account deficit decreased from
almost 32 per cent of GDP in the previous year to 28

per cent in 2009 reflecting a fall-off of imports related to
fuel and foreign direct investment.

The banking sector continued to show growth and
resilience in the face of the global crisis. Both banking
sector credit to the private sector and the money supply
increased in the 12 months to December 2009.
Prudential indicators suggest that local banks have
remained liquid and well capitalised, while non-
performing loans have declined.

In its special mention of the DAIDB,

the IMF report? indicated that:

The Agricultural and Industrial Development Bank has
been refocused on its original mandate as a
development bank and placed under the supervision
of the FSU. It no longer takes deposits or makes
consumer loans and has reduced its large portfolio of
nonperforming loans [NPLs].

The banks lending has recently grown rapidly, and it
has contracted loans amounting to US$22.4 million
[6 per cent of GDP] to finance its operations”

Preliminary estimates indicate that Governments main
fiscal indicator, the primary fiscal balance, recorded a
surplus of 1.5 per cent of GDP, short of the 2 per cent
that had been estimated. The main reason for this was
the non-implementation of measures for capital revenue
which accounted for more than 1 per cent of GDP and
the higher than projected level of government financing
of the capital budget.

Governments debt to GDP ratio now stands at 72
per cent, representing a significant decrease from 130
per cent in 2008. It was this performance that helped to

'Sources:

Government of Dominica, Prime Minister s Budget Presentation 2010- 2011 . Roseau, July 2010

IMF, Country Report No. 10/261, “Dominica: 2010 Article IV Consultation — Staff Report; Staff Supplement and Public Information Notice on the Executive Board

Discussion , Washington, August 2010.

2|MF, Country Report No. 10/261, “Dominica: 2010 Article IV Consultation — Staff Report; Staff Supplement and Public Information Notice on the Executive Board

Discussion , Washington, August 2010.
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increase government’s flexibility to respond to economic
shocks and to maintain capital spending in 2009 at the
high post-hurricane levels of 2007 and 2008.

In its Budget Address for financial year 2010-2011
Government has stated thatits, economic management
policy goals continue to be as stated in the Growth and
Social Protection Strategy, that is:

» To maintain as the centrepiece of fiscal management,
a primary surplus target of 3 per cent of GDP;

» To continue on the path of maintaining the
sustainability of the country’s fiscal position;

» To continue working towards increasing sustainability
of the level of the national debt;

» Continued strengthening of the management of the
public finances; and

» To continue to create the conditions for achieving
and sustaining economic growth levels at an average
of 3.0 per cent per annum.

Medium-term growth prospects are expected to be
driven by industries related to the environment, water
and energy sources. It has been recommended that
comparative advantages in some natural resource-
based industries should be better exploited as in the
case of eco-tourism, agro-industries, niche focused
agriculture and fisheries, and geothermal energy. It has
also been recommended that Dominica emphasise
infrastructure investments complementary to Dominica s
comparative advantages including off-shore education
and cruise tourism.

The near to medium-term economic outlook is that the
Dominican economy is expected to grow by 1.5 per
cent in 2010. The downside risks are related to a
potentially very slow recovery in advanced economies,
which would adversely affect tourism activity.

Left and Centre: Student Apartment Complex, Ti Bay, Portsmouth, Right: Apartment Complex, Restaurant and Bar, Layou Park
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PART 2
THE PERFORMANCE OF DAIDB
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LENDING OPERATIONS

Approvals LOAN APPROVALS BY SECTOR 2010

For the twelve-month period ended June 30, 2010,
388 loans were approved with a total value of $41.91
million. Tourism loans of $22.77 million and Industry
loans of $6.65 million combined, accounted for 70.2
per cent of total approvals for the period. During the
period under review, the Bank also approved one
loan valued at $5.00 milion for infrastructural
development.

The loan approvals for the twelve-month period were
significantly above the actual approvals recorded for
that same period ended June 30, 2009 by 211.44
per cent.

Graph legend: PERSONAL MORTGAGE/HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE
INDUSTRY EDUCATION TOURISM AGRICULTURE

LOAN APPROVALS
2001-2010

EC$ Millions
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Disbursements LOAN DISBURSEMENTS BY SECTOR 2010

For the financial year, to June 30, 2010, disbursement
of loans totalled $21.05 million. This was 47.39 per
cent above the level of disbursements of $14.28 million
recorded for the same period in 2009 and 27.36 per
cent below the budgeted figure of $28.98 million.

Industry Loans at $6.97 million, Tourism loans at
$5.50 million and Housing Loans at $3.44 million
accounted for the major portion of disbursements for
the period.

For the year ended June 30, 2010 the Bank also
disbursed a total of $1.11 million to projects on behalf
of the Agricultural Investment Unit of the Ministry
of Agriculture.

Graph legend: PERSONAL MORTGAGE/HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE
INDUSTRY EDUCATION TOURISM AGRICULTURE

LOAN
DISBURSEMENTS
2001-2010

EC$ Millions
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Rescheduling

For the twelve-month period ended June 30, 2010,
seventy-two [72] loans with a total value of $3.06 million
were approved for rescheduling. This represented a
reduction from the eighty-six [86] loans with a total
value of $6.36 million during the similar twelve-month
period in 2009.

Loans to the Education, Housing and Industry sectors
combined again accounted for the majority of
rescheduling of 96.83 per cent during the period.

Loan Portfolio

At the end of June 2010, the principal outstanding in
the Loan Portfolio of the Bank totalled $119.38 million.
This compared favourably with $115.08 million
outstanding as at June 30, 2009. The principal
outstanding as at June 30, 2010 represented an
increase of 3.60 per cent over the same period last year.

Of the total principal outstanding, principal arrears
totalled $16.56 milion or 13.87 per cent of the
outstanding principal. Of that total, $12.19 million
represented Principal Arrears on Non-Performing [NP]
Loans while the remainder of $4.37 million represented
principal arrears on loans in arrears for periods less than
three months.

In terms of distribution of the Portfolio among the
various sectors, Education at $35.32 milion was the
largest beneficiary of loans accounting for 28.15 per
cent of the total. This sector was followed by Housing
with 24.13 per cent and Tourism with 21.11 per cent.

As at June 30, 2010 NP loans totalled $19.02 million
or 15.93 per cent of total principal outstanding of
$119.38 million.

For the corresponding period as at June 30,
2009, NP loans totalled $21.40 million or
18.59 per cent of total principal outstanding

of $115.08 million.

Total interest outstanding on non-performing loans for
the month ended June 30, 2010 amounted to $5.01
milion as compared to $5.41 milion for the
corresponding period last year.

Principal in arrears as at June 30, 2010 on NP loans
totalled $12.19 million, which represented 73.6 per cent
of total principal arrears of $16.56 million.

The Housing, Education and Personal & Other Sectors
are the best performing sectors for the Bank, with 9.38
per cent, 10.24 per cent and 13.55 per cent of NP
ratios respectively; whereas Agriculture, Tourism and
Industry account for the highest NP ratios with 42.43
per cent, 26.49 per cent and 18.97 per cent respectively.

For the twelve-month period to June 30, 2010 the
migration of loans into non-performing totalled $2.87
milion or 84 loans while the migration from non-
performing to performing for that same period totalled
$3.13 million or 105 loans. The net migration yielded
a positive value of $254,679.30 represented by 21
loans. As such, during the period more loans came out
of the non-performing category than those that went
into that category.

Manufacturing of Aluminum Roofing, Portsmouth
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Funding

The Bank obtained approvals for two new lines of
credit during the financial year, together totalling
US$18.04 million.

A consolidated line of credit of US$8 million was
approved by the Caribbean Development Bank [CDB]
in December 2009. This approval followed an interval
of seven years since the previous line of credit was
approved by the CDB in 2002. The purpose of the
loan is for on-lending to the productive sectors of the
economy as well as student and housing loans.

The European Investment Bank approved a loan of
US$10.04 million in June 2010. Of these funds
US$8.78 million is for on-lending to projects in the
productive sectors of the economy and the remaining
US$1.25 million is specifically to fund projects utilising
renewable energy sources.

Signing of European Investment Bank Finance Contract for US$8.78 million.

$20
$15
LINES OF
CREDIT APPROVED
$10
US$ Millions
$5
$0 — o

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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Management Information Technology

The AID Bank continues to put strong emphasis on its
information technology function recognising the
importance of technology for development. Focus is
being placed on all aspects of the information system
with the Bank advancing hardware, software, training
and IT policies.

An EU grant received as part of the SFA 2000
Framework for Agri-Business Development and
Enterprise [FADE] project, provided us with equipment
and software to supplement our security, network
administration and management capabilities with the
aim of strengthening our support of the development
of agriculture and industry.

This year saw the implementation and installation of
new physical and virtual servers, desktops and
software equipment, including both EU and AID Bank
investments in information technology infrastructure,
to improve the Bank s business continuity and disaster
recovery capability.

The annual Systems and Process Assurance
(SPA) review was carried out in June 2010 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. The results of that audit
indicated that the information system is generally
compliant with industry standards and policies and also
with established policies and procedures. The SPA
review is done annually to ensure that our system
remains protected and that our bank software generates
accurate and reliable information.

All IT staff received training in Windows Server 2008
administration and network administration,
strengthening the capability of the unit to handle the
ever-growing IT needs of the Bank. Training was also
received in server and desktop virtualisation using
Windows Server 2008.

The project is now in progress to redevelop the Banks
corporate website. The new website will provide
additional services to our customers some of which will
allow borrowers to obtain information on the status of
their loans online and also to make online loan payments.

The Unit aims to embark on a more rigid information
security program during the next financial year. Other
projects include the redesign of the Banks business
continuity and disaster recovery policies to bring them
in line with the new infrastructure.

New Equipment installation, MIS Unit, AID Bank
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Staffing

At the end of the financial year, the staff-complement
totalled thirty-seven [37].

Effective October 1, 2009 the Bank implemented a new
Organisational Chart, with commensurate adjustments
to compensation packages in order to bring the
institution in line with its local and regional comparators.

The new structure was based on the recognition that
there are two main functional areas of every organisation
[a] the mission functions those for which the institution
was established which in the case of the DAIDB is that
of providing credit to the productive sectors of Dominica,
and, [b] the maintenance functions those functions
which are supportive of the organisation in the execution
of its mission functions.

The major changes made to the organisational chart
were to reflect the strategies and programmes accepted
in the Strategic Plan 2009/2014 and included:

(@ Thecreation oftwo postsinthe category, Management
level 2 [M2] designated Executive Managers with
both reporting to the General Manager.

The Executive Manager Credit Operations is
responsible for loan appraisals, credit approvals and
collections [recoveries] and is accountable for the
integrity and quality of the loan portfolio of the Bank.

The Executive Manager Corporate Affairs is
responsible for the majority of functions which
are supportive to the activities of Credit Operations
including the Management Information Systems
function.

a) The title of three Managers were changed to Senior
Manager, these are the Senior Managers of MIS,
Human Resources and Finance and Accounts.

b) The Senior Managers of Human Resources and
Finance report to the General Manager.

c) A new post, Special Projects and Communications

Coordinator was created, whose functions include:

the coordination of the project identification
and development [in association with Invest
Dominica and other agencies] and the
communications and outreach programme of the
Bank. This position reports to the Executive Manager
Corporate Affairs.

d) Although efforts were made to fill the position of
Internal Auditor, the position remains vacant.

Of signal importance is the fact that the new
organisational chart did not result in an increase in the
staff complement of the Bank, notwithstanding the
significant increase in lending activities and in the
expansion of the operations including the offering of
new financial products.

In addition, a new Performance Appraisal system with
an emphasis on targeted outcomes was introduced
as an important element of the reorganisation of
the institution.

Six months after implementation of the new
Organisational Chart, Performance Appraisals were
conducted and all individuals placed in acting positions
were confirmed.

Training

In its commitment to improve the level of skills and
competencies within the organisation the Bank has
provided financial support for five (5) members of staff
who are currently pursuing their Bachelors degrees in
Management, Business Administration, Information
Technology and Marketing and five who are pursuing
their Masters degrees in Business Administration,
Banking and Information Technology.

Further, training in credit appraisal techniques were
conducted by the General Manager/Consultant during
the year which has led to an improvement in the quality
of loan appraisals.



PART 3
OTHER ACTIVITIES
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Industrial Estate Unit [IEU]

The Industrial Estate Unit has been faced with several
challenges this year, but has still managed to make
its contributions to national development with four
staff members.

The total employment currently at the Industrial Estate is
seven hundred and thirty-seven [737] employees, Clear
Harbor being the largest employer with a total of five
hundred and twenty-three [523] employees.

The Industrial Estate consists of twenty [20] buildings with

a total floor space of 147,140 sq ft. The buildings have
been sub-divided into 31 units ranging from 780 sq ft
to 21,000 sq ft. Twenty-three [23] tenants currently
rent 28 units of building space at the Industrial Estate
and twelve [12] rent land.

The Canefield Industrial Estate is the most developed of
the four [4] Industrial Estates accounting for eighteen
[18] out of the total of twenty [20] buildings. At present
the only space which is available is the building in
Geneva with a floor area of [6,400 sq ft].

Two of the greatest challenges of the Industrial Estate
are rental collections and the identification of additional
land at suitable locations for expansion of the program.

Additionally, the Industrial Estate Unit is now focusing its
attention on rental collection.

Other important activities include improvements to
buildings, landscaping and facilitating the ICT Sector.

Presently the IEU is working with a company
[FX Diffusion Ltd.] to assist in the creation of 100 new
jobs, which should come on stream by the end of
October 2010.

With respect to sectoral representation, tenants at the
Industrial Estate include Manufacturers, Information
Communication & Technology Companies, Service
Industries and Warehousing. A number of persons
involved in the manufacturing sector have contacted the
Unit expressing interest in rental of space, which signals
a greater demand for space by that sector.

The Industrial Estate Unit has maintained its objectives
by providing factory/office space for local and foreign
enterprises, encouraging industrial production for local
and export consumption, thereby creating employment
while generating foreign exchange. This is in keeping
with Governments policy of job creation.

Financial Data Systems Ltd.

The Banks Loans Application and Loans Management
processes are supported by Financial Data Systems
Ltd. [FDSL].

The company plans to roll-out upgrades in both
packages this year.

During the Financial year, the company hired several
students from the Dominica State College to assist with
the process of upgrading the programmes.




PART 4
AID BANK’S CORPORATE/
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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CORPORATE /
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank (DAIDB) has continued to perform
and expand its role as a good corporate citizen in the Commonwealth of Dominica, by supporting
causes considered fundamental to the overall economic and social well-being of the citizens
of Dominica.

For the Financial Year in review, 2009/10, the Banks Corporate Social Responsibility activities
focused on charitable, educational, business and environmental causes.

Among the highlights of the Bank’s activities for the year were:
» A Christmas Outreach programme held in December, 2009:

» afull scholarship to the University of Technology (UTECH), Jamaica;
» the Adopt-a-Road Programme and various sponsorship and donation contributions.

Following consultations with a number of Village Councils, over 200 children enjoyed a special
Christmas treats hosted by the AID Bank. In this initiative, which was undertaken in lieu of the
Staff s Annual Dinner, teams from the Bank, including members of the Board of Directors, visited
children in the communities of Concord, Trafalgar/Shawford/Fond Canie, Tarish Pit, Gallion,
Eggleston/Giraudel and Campbell.

The children received Christmas gifts and snacks and had fun singing Christmas carols, with the
visiting AID Bank Teams, one of whom was dressed in a Santa Claus outfit distributing gifts.

AID Bank, Christmas Community Outreach Programme
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» The Banks full scholarship in Civil Engineering in the amount of US$20,000.00 annually was
awarded to Miss Kiran Karnick Burnette and who was selected from a competitive list of 5
applicants by a distinguished panel of professionals from diverse fields within the public and
private sectors. The scholarship, which is for a duration of 4 academic years, commenced
in September 2010.

» The AID Bank continues to be very instrumental in the care, maintenance and beautification
of the Goodwill Road Highway through its Adopt-a-Road Programme. This activity was
initiated in 2007 and the Bank is appreciative of the efforts of all those who have partnered
with us, to ensure its continuity. The Programme currently provides continuous part-time
employment for one maintenance worker and generates revenue for the suppliers of the
area s plants and various irrigation equipment.

» In addition, the AID Bank has sponsored a number of events and made cash donations
totalling in excess of $47,000.00 to various causes.

Beneficiaries included: the Business Plan Innovative Awards of the Dominica Youth Business
Trust which received $23,000; the Dominica State College for a Tourism Retreat; Website
Hosting of the College Fair and the Commonwealth Youth Exchange Programme; part-
sponsorship of the Bafondpoint Football Team; the 2010 Miss Dominica Pageant; the St.
Joseph Carnival; sheltered benches for the Goodwill Secondary School, overseas medical
assistance to a young child; and contributions to the graduation ceremonies for various
schools namely the Isaiah Thomas Secondary school, the Seventh Day Adventist Secondary
School; Goodwill Primary and the Pierre Charles Secondary School.

» The Staff of the AID Bank contributed $3,171.55 for the Haitian Relief Fund which was
matched by a contribution of $10,000 from the Bank.

-

Left: AID Bank Scholarship Winner with Special Projects and Communications Coordinator

Right: Scholarship Winner being congratulated by Member of the Scholarship Selection Committee
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PART 5
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Net Income from Operations

As indicated in Table 1 below, Net Income from
Operations of $3.81 million was higher than last years
restated $3.00 million by 27.09 per cent.

The Bank realised a total Net Profit for the financial year
ended June 30, 2010 of $1.59 million after a foreign
exchange gain of $0.39 milion and providing for
impairment losses on loans and receivables of $2.60
million and impairment losses on available-for sale
investments of $0.02 million.

This was 23.27 per cent more than the audited Net Profit
of $1.29 million recorded for the similar period last year.

TABLE 1

Interest income

Other operating income
Total income

Interest expense

Staff costs

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total expenses

Net income from operations before the following income/(charges):

Gain on foreign exchange

The following were the main items, which affected the
level of Net Profit for the year:

1 Refund of overpayment of principal of $0.92 million
on an existing European Investment Bank [EIB]
long-term loan was offset against the liability and
recognised as other income.

2 A foreign exchange gain of $0.39 million realized on
translation of EIB long-term loan to exchange rate
existing at Balance Sheet date, June 30, 2010.

3 A provision of $0.63 million made for impairment of
investment in British American Insurance Company.

2010 EC$ 2009 EC$
10,306,745 10,608,894
2,028,248 531,426
12,334,993 11,140,320
(3,708,001) (4,075,777)
(3,125,610) (2,547,989)
(854,544) (679,575)
(511,551) (495,073)
(326,338) (340,911)
(8,521,044) (8,139,325)
3,813,949 ‘I 3,000,995

‘ 388,693 |I 703,326

(2,597,323)
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Income

Total Income recorded for the financial year was
$12.33 million excluding foreign exchange gain of
$388,693. This was 10.72 per cent higher than the
$11.14 million recorded for the comparative period
ended June 30, 2009.

Interest income was lower than recorded for the
previous financial year as a result of lower loan balances
for most of the year.

While loans outstanding increased in the last quarter of
the financial year, it did not contribute meaningfully to
interest income for the year.

Expenses
Financial Expenses at $3.70 milion were lower than
recorded for the corresponding period last year by
9.15 per cent due to lower balances reported for long-
term loans.

Total Staff Expenses of $3.13 million were 22.67 per
cent higher than last years $2.55 million.

Administrative Expenses of $0.85 million were 25.75 per
cent higher than the $0.68 million recorded for last year.

Total Operating Expenses of $8.52 million were more
than the $8.14 million recorded for the similar period
last year by 4.69 per cent.

Assets

The major component of assets was loans and
advances to customers, which had a gross balance
of $125.48 million compared to last year s balance of
$121.81 million; a 3.01 per cent growth. Net loans of
$116.55 million adequately offset total long-term
liabilities of $82.89 million.

At June 30, 2010, assets totalled $132.54 million
representing a 1.44 per cent increase from last years
audited $130.65 million.

Under current assets, cash in current account and
short-term investments totalled $7.10 million; 11.03 per
cent less than last year s $7.98 million. Other receivables
of $0.45 million were more than last year s $0.38 million.
Other receivables include insurance premiums arrears,
legal and other fees paid on behalf of clients.

Net investments in treasury bills, Government
debentures and shares in companies totalled $3.89
million was 0.26 per cent lower than last years
$3.90 million.

Net total fixed assets of $4.55 milion were 6.38 per
cent less than last years $4.86 million.

Liabilities
Current Liabilities totalled $21.65 million and were 1.65
per cent more than last year s total of $21.30 million.

Long-term liabilites equalled $98.50 milion and
registered a net decrease of 2.72 per cent from last
years $101.26 million.

Shareholders Equity

Shareholders Equity increased by 4.29 per cent from
last years $31.22 million to $32.56 million. Retained
Earnings also showed an increase of 14.10 per cent
from the comparative period of last year, moving from
$6.16 million to $7.02 million.
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AUDITORS REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DOMINICA AGRICULTURAL
INDUSTRIAL AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30 2010 (expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
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Sepiember 29, 2010 aters
B2 Lo, Wead inders
Telephora ([TE)] 4546- 2000
Fecairrlay  [TRH] 4521050

Independent Auditors® Report

To the Sharchelders of
Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Report an the Financal Statements

W have audited the sccompanying financial statements of Dominica Agricultural Industrial and
Development Bank (the Bank) which comprise the balance sheet s of June 30, 2010 and the statements
n_!'mpm:m incomye, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory notes.

Management’s Respoansibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the proparation and fair presentation of these fMinancial statements in
accordance with lmermational Financial Reponing Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or emor; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accountng estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stitements based on our sudii. We
combucted our sudit in accordance with Intermational Stamdards on Aoditing. Those Standards reduine
that we comply with ethical requirements and plam and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assumnce
whether the financial statements are free lrom material misstatement,

o T A T S Tem T e i P i it ] e il e R B O Y e S T E PR @ L T R
e e e e i Tl R e e e g S B e ] R e
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Page I

Anpditors’ Respensibility. ., cominued

An suds imvodves performing procedures (o obinin sudil evidence shou the amounts and dizelosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making (o
risk assessments, the nadibors consider intemal control relevant to the entily"s preparston zmd fair
presentation of the financial satements in order to design audit procedincs that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the entity's imternal
contrel. An sudic also includes evaluating the appropeistencas of accounting policies wsed and the
rensonnblencss of accounting estimates made by managensent. as well as evaluating 1he overall presentation
of ihe financial salements,

We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained & sufficient and appropriate o provide 3 hasis For
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the scoompanying financial statements present faidy, in all material respects, the financial
position of Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank as of June 30, 2000, and its

financial performance and its cash Nows for the year then ended in accordance with Istemational Financial
Reporiing Stsndands,

/ﬁ?. g

Charfered Acconntants
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Ralance Sheet

As of June 30, 2010

{expressed in Easicrn Caribbean dodlars)

Assels
Cash and balances with Central Bank {Moie 5

Treasury bills (Mot 6)
Deposits with hanks and other financial institutions (Note 7)

Laans and sdvences to ¢ustomers Mot §)
Available-Tor-sale investments (Moie 10)
Property, plant and equipment (Mote 11)
ither assets (Mote 12)

Toial asscis

Liabilities

e o customers (Mote 13)
Borrowed lunds (Mo 14)
Dvibier Hinbilities (Mote 15)

Total liabilitics

Equity

Share capital (Note 16)
Reserves (Moie 17)
Retained carnings

Total equity

Total linbilities and equity

Approved by the Board of Directors on September 13, 2000

mm 2y
5 5
23630 1111602
2432960 2,430,548
7,272,658 5910456
116,548 500 112,686,451
1252340 1,267,340
4354411 4,863 260
454,568 382,336
132,538 048 130,651,993
10,824,454 0,167,058
BLE9D436 &4 094 444
6,258 408 5,167 958
PI75I0E 99420542
17,547,631 17,547,631
7091450 1500284
7023689 6,155,536
32,562,770 31,222 451
131,538 068 130,651,993
—— . Direcior
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the vear ended June 30, 20010

{eapresied in Exstern Cartbbean dollars)

Interest income (Noie [8)

Imterest expense (Note 18)

Net interest income

(ither operating income i Note 19)

(Mher operating expenses (Mot 20)

Impairment losses on loans and receivables

Impairmeit losses on available-for-sale investments (Note 10)

Prafit for the year

Unrealised gninsf{loss) on availabbe-for-sabe investments
(Motes 10 and 17)

Foreign exchange loas utilization (Noge 17)

Inspairmient losses on avallable-for-sale investiments
reclassificd 1o the sintement of income (Note 17)

Mher comprehensive incame

Total comprehensive income for the year

2010 ZiMpr

$ ]

(As restated)

10,306,745 110,608,894
(3,703,001 ) (4,075,777)
6603744 6,533,117
2416941 1,234,752
(4818043 (4,063, 54H)
(2,597,523) (1.918.310)
(20,000 (£99.900)
1585319 1,286,021
5,000 (20,000

- (444 086)

= 499,950

5,000 435,004
1,590,319 1,721,925
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank
Staterment of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2000

(expressed in Exstern Caribbean dollass)

Share capital Heservis Retained Total
(Mol 16] (Mate 17) enrnings equily
5 5 5 5

Balance at June M), 2008, as previously reported 17,547,631 6RI5208  SR60420 30,232,259

Prior period adjustment (Note 28) {120,433} {361,300) (81,733}
Balance at June 30, 2008, as restaiod I7.547.631 6654, 775 550813 19,750,526
Profit for the year - - 1.286,02] 1, 286,02
Impairment losses on available-for-sale

imvesiment [Motes 1 7) - 05,950 - L0 Qi)
Forcign exchamge lass utilizatbon {Nobe | T) - (BRI - (44.085)
Unrealired gain on available-for-sale

investments {Motes 10 and 17) = ({200, TN = {30000

Transfer from retained eamnings Lo reserves - JERGO5 (388 605) =
Tolal comprehensive income - 824,500 BOT 416 1,721,925
Dividends on oscdinasy shares (Moe 23) - - (2S00 000) (250,000
Balance ai June M, 2009, a5 resiabed 17,547,611 7519284 6, 15555  31,2XI1451

E@lnﬂl at Jume 3, 2009, as previously reported 17247631 1613397 G AT ETE 60T
Price period adjadment (Note 28) - (104,113) (312.3400 (416,453)

Balance at June 30, 2009, as restated 17.547,631 T519.284 615550  31,.222451
Profit for the year - = 1,585,319 | 585319
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

imvestments (MNotes 10 and 170 - 5,000 = 5 000
Transler from retadned camimgs o reserves = 467, | 6k (467, 1661 -
Tuotal comprehensive income - AT 1646 LL18,153 1,590,319
Drividends on ondinary shases (Nowe 23) - - [ 25600000 {280, 000)
Balance at Jure 30, 2010 17,547,631 7.5991 TH2A689  32S6LTT0
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Statement of Cash Flows
For the yvear ended June 3, 2010
{expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
2000 2
§ 5
iAs restated)
Cash NMows from operating activities
Net peofit for the year 1,585,319 | 286,001
Adjusiments Tor:
Impairment bosses on loans and receivables 259731 1918310
Depreciation {Motes |1 and 20) A26.338 Mognl
Imﬁiﬂ'lﬂ'll: Iosees on available-for-sake investments (Note 10) 20,000 459,950
Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (Noie 19) (£7,722) [255)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (Mote 19) (358 603 (T3 3260
Interest and similas income (Noie 18) i 10.30:6,745) { H0,608 B9 )
Interest expense and similar charges (Note 18) 3,703,001 4075777
Cash flows before changes in operating asscts and liabilines {2 ASLITY) (3,191 466)
Increass in loans amd sdvances o customers (6,455 068, {BI672T)
Decreasefincrense) im deposits with banks and other financial
instituticns (218.5-40) 2858424
Drecreassf{increase) in olber assets (72222} I3.022
{DecrexseMincrease in due (o cuslomens 657,316 (3014.557)
Increase in caber liabilities 1,340, 450 985424
Cash used in operaticons {T,240,453) (2,985, 780)
Interest received 10,936 340 10,510,091
Interest paid AI5STAIT) (A2
Net cash (used mpgenerated from operting activities i261.930) 4404 287
Cash Mows from investing activities
Procesits from disposal of property, plant and equipment iy 1 125
Purchase of propery, plant and equipment (Nole 11§ {}IT.-IE [191,235)
Met cash used in nvesting activities _ la233 {190.910)
Cash Mows from Mnancing activitics
Bormowings AT &, 000, 00
Repayment of borrowings (8558501 (7.836,688)
Davidends paid (500,000} {300,000)
Foreign exchange utilization [Mote 17) = [44 0863
MNet cash used in financing activities i1,058,501) 380,774
Net (decreaseVincrease in cash and cash equivalents (1310,195) 1,832,603
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year B,926,985 5,004,382
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (Noge 24) T.616,THT £026,083
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Motes to Financial Statements
June 30, 210

(espressed in Eastern Canbbean dollars)
1 General information

Dominsca Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank (the Bank) is a corporate body established under
Chapter 78:03 of the revised laws of the Commonwealth of Dominica, with its principal objectives being to
promsode and influence the econombc development of the Commonwealth of Dominica and to mobilize Tunds
Tor the purpese of such development,

The Bank’s principal place of business and registered office is located at the comer of Charles Avense and
Rawles Lane, Goodwill, Commonwealth of Dominica.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements ane set oul below,
These policies have been consistently applicd e all the years presented, unless ciberwise stated.

Basls of preparation

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revalustion of available-for-sale
financial assets

The prepartion of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requines the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. B also requires management 10 excreise its judgement in the process of applying the Bank's
accounting policies. The arcas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas whene assumptions
and estimates arc significant 1o the financial datements are disclosed in Nooe 4,

Standards and amendments to published standards effective an ar after January 1, 2000

* IFRS 7, "Fimancial instruments — Disclosures” (amendment), requires enhanced disclosures aboot fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. The Bank adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 with effect from July 1, 2000, This
requires dischosure of fair value measurements by bevel of the following fair value measarement hierarchy:

* Cruoted prices (unadjasted) in sctive markets for slentical assets or labilities (Level 1)

= [nputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that ase observable for the asset or Hability, either
dinccily (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2,

* Imputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
{Lewel 3.

The adoption of the amendmend results in additional disclosuncs.

* IAS 1 irevised), ‘Presentation of financial ststements”, The revised standard prohibits the presentation of
iems of income and expenses (that is. “mon-cwner changes in equity”) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘pon-owner changes in equity’ to be presented scparately from awner changes in equity in
statemnent of comprehensive income. As a result, the Bank presents in the statement of changes in equity all
ewner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equily are presented in the stalement of
comprehensive income. Comparalive information has been re-presented so that it also conforms with the
revised standard. The change in sccounting policy only impacts presentation aspects.
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank
MNotes to Financial Statements
June 30, 20010

{expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies,  contfaned

Standards and amendmenis that are not yel effective but relesant 1o the Bank
The Following standands and amemdments (o existing standagds have been published and are mandstony for the
Bank's accounting periods beginning on or afier July 1, 2000 or later periods.

#= IAS | (amendment), ‘Preseniation of Maancial statements’, The amendment provides clarification that the
potential settlement of a lability by the bsie of equity is not relevant to its classification as curment or non
current. By amending the definition of cument liability, the amendment permits a lability 1o be classified as
noa-carreat (provided that the entity has an unconditional right 10 defer settlement by transfer of cash or other
assets for af keast 12 months after the accounting period) nodwithstanding the fact that the entity could be
recpuired by the counterparty (o setile in shares sl any time, The Bank will apply [AS | {(amendmént) fram
January 1, 2000, It is mor expeetsd (o have 3 material impact on the Bank's financial siatements,

o [FRS 9, ‘Financil indruments’, IFRS 9 addresses classilication asd measurement of financial assets. [FRS 9
replaces the multiple classification and measunement models in 1AS 39 with a single model that kas only two
classification calegories: amontised cost and fakr value, IFRS 5 represents the first milestone in the TASEs
planned replscement of LAS 39, The Bank is considering the implications of the standard and its impact on the
Bank.

Cash and cosh equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents comprise halances with less than three months” medurity from the date of acquisition,
including: cash and non-restricied halances with other banks, treasury bills and sther shon-temm securities.

Financial assets

The Bank classifics ils financial assets in the following categorics: boans and receivables and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation st every reporting date.

(8} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables ane mon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are mot quoted
im an nctive market, other than: (a) those thae the entity intends o sell immediately or m the short term, which ans
classified x5 held for trading, and those thal the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through
profit or loss; (b) those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; or (c) those for
which the holder may not recover substantially all of itx initial investment, other than becawse of credit
detericoztion. The Bank"s loans and receivabbes comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and
other financial institutions and loans and sdvances [0 customers.

i) Available for sale
Available-for-sale imvestments are those intended 1o be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold
i response (o needs for liquidity or changes in interest rales, exchange rabes or equity prices.

Purchases and sales of available-for-sale investments ane recognised on rade-date - the date om which the Bank
commits o purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initlally recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets nod carried at fair value through profie or loss. Financial asscts are derecognised when the
rights 10 receive cash Aows from the financial sssels have expired or where the Bank has tmnsfemed
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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(B) A vailable for sote...continmd

Avallable-for-sale finoncial asscis sre subsequently carmied at falr value. Loans and receivables are carried a
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arizing from changes in the fair value of
availnble-for-sale financial assets are recognised in equity, until ibe financial asset is derecognised or impained at
which time the cumulstive gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in profit and ko, However,
interest caloulated using the effective interest method is recognised in the staement af income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the stalerent of income when the entity’s right (o receive
payment is established,

The fair values of guoded mvestments in active markets are based on current bal prices. If the narket for o financial
asset is nol active (and for unlisted securities), the Bank establishes fair value by using valustion technigues, These
include the use of recent amm's length transactions, and other valuation techniques commenly used by market
panticipasts.

Tenpairment of Mnancial assets

Asasta cammied at amorlised cost

The Bank assesses ot each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impakrment losses
are mcvrred if, and only if, there B objective evidence of impairment as a resubl of one of moere evenls that
occurred after the initial recognition of the assel (a “loss evens™) and that [oss event (or events) has an immpact on
the estimated future cash fows of the Mrascial assel or growp of financial nssets that can be reliably estimated.
Dhjective evidence thal a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes 1o
the stiention of the Bank about the following loss ¢ vents:

(i) significant fimancial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
(i) o breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest or principal payments;
{iii] the Bank granting to the bormower, for economic or legal reasons refating 1o the borrower™s financial
difficulry, a concesabon that the lender would not ciherwise consider;
divl it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or sther Mmarcial reorganisation;
(%) the disappearance of an active markel for that financeal asset becawse of financial difficulties; or
{vi} ohservable data indicating that there ks 3 measurable decrease in the estimated figure cash Mows from a
group of fimancial assets since the mitial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the group, inclading:
adverse changes in the payment status of borrawers in the group; or
national or local economic conditions that comelate with defaults on the assets in the group.

The Bank firat assesses whether objective evidence of impairmend exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, amd individually or collectively for financial assets that are nol individually significant, If
the Bank determises that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial nsset,
whether significant or not, il includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credin fsk charscleritics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually nssessed for impairment ansd for which
an impairment koss is or contines 10 be recognised are naot included ina colleciive assessment of impairment.
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Impairment of financial assets. . contimied

Assets cartied al amortised cost. . caatinmad

If there is shjective evidence that an impairment boss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount of
the boss is measured as the difference between the assel’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
fuire cash Mows {exchuding future credit bosses that bave mot been mcurred) discosnted at the financial asset’s
ariginal effective intenest mte. The carrying amount of the asset is redwoed through the use af an allowance
account and the nmount of the loss is recogaised in the statement of income. If A loan kas varisble interest rabes,
the discount rabe for measuring any impainment boss is the cumrent effective interest rate determined under the
comract. As a practical expedient, the Bank may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair valise
using the observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated fture cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects.
the cash Mlows that may or may not result from forechosune bess costs for oblaining and selling the collateral,
whether or nod the foreclesure i probable,

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial pssets are grouped on ihe basis of similar
credit characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Bank's grading process that comsiders asset type, industry, collaeral
Iype, past=due status and other relevant factons), Those chamcteristics are relevant to the estimation of Mune
cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors” ability 1o pay all amounts due acconding
1o the contraciual terms of the asset being evalunted,

Futare cash Nows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash Mows of the assets in the Bank and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the Bank. The methodology and assumptions wsed for estimating future cash flows
are reviewed regularly by the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a boan is uncollectible, it is written off against the relsted provision for loan impaimment. Such loans ane
writien off after all the necessary procedures have been conipleted and the amount of the koss has been determined.
Subsequen recoveries of amounts previously wrinen off decreass the amourt of the provision for the loan
imspairment i the datement of income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairmeal loss docreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to un event occurring afier the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debior’s credit rating),
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account, The amount of the
reversal is recognised in ihe stabement of income,

Assets camied af fair valug

The Bank awsesses al cach balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments ¢lassified as available for sale, a significant or
prodonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets ane
imgpaired. If any such evidenoe exists for available-for-sake financial assets, the cumulative loss measered as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the profit or loss, is removed from equily and recognised in ihe statement of inceme.
Impairment lasses recognised in the staement of income on equity instruments ane not reversed through the
stotemient of ncome. I, in a subsequent perical. the fair value of a debt imstrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectivoly related 1o an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
im the satement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income,

DAIDB Annual Report 2010: The Financial Engine of Economic Growth 47



Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank
Notes to Financial Statements
June 340, 2010

{expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies. . contimued
Impairment of Anancial assets., cominmed

Rencgotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated ane no loager considered to be past due but are treated as new loans, In subsequent years,
the auset s consadered to e past due and disclosed only if rencgotinted,

[DHTeetting Mnanclal struments

Financial assets and lisbilities ane offset and the net amount reported in the hatance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention ro setile on a net basis, or realise the
assel and scitbe the lability simualtassously.

Property, pant amd equipment
All property and equipment ane stated at historical cost bess socumulaied depreciation. Historical cost includes
exnpenditune that ks direcily atiributable o the scquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are inchided in the nsset’s camrying amourt or recognised as & sepamte assel, & approprate, only
when it is prohable that future economic benefits associated with the ilem will flow 1o the Bark and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other nepairs. and maintenance are charged 1o the statement of income during the
fimancial pericd in which they are incamed,

Land is mot depreciated, Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method 1o allocats the cost of the
following assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 2%
Motor vehicles 2%
Farniture and equipmsem 0-3319%
Compuler cquipsent 20-3310%

The assets” residu) valises and uselul lives are fenewsd, and adjusied if appropreans, at cach halance sheet date.

Crains and Josses on disposals are determined by comparing procesds with carrying amount, These are included
in the staiement of income,

Impairment of other non-Minancial wsels

Assets hal have an indefinite useful life are not subject 10 amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in clrcumsiances
inadicate that the camrying amourt may ot be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amatnt by
which the asset’s carrying ameunt excecds its recoverable amount. The recoverabile amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs 16 sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there ane separaiely identifiable cash flows (cash gencrating umits),

Borrowlngs

Borrowings are recognised initially o fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair valoe of consideration received)
net of Imnsaction costs incurred. Bormowings ane subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
proceeds met of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the sistement of income over the
period of the barrowengs wsing the effective interest method,
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Grrants

Grands are recognised al their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Bank will comply with all attached conditions, Grants relating 1o cosis are defemred and recognised in the
statcment of income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended 10 compensate.

Fldueinry activitles
The Bank acts as executing and collecting agenl for funds used for specific purposes issed to the Bank by the
Governement of Domincia and other local agencies. The Bank eamns agency fees as prescribed by the contractual

agreement.

Share copiial
Orredimary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs direcily attributable to the issse of now shares or
optins or io the acquisition of a busimess ane shown 0 equity as 8 deduction, from the proceeds.

Drivislemds on erdmary shares ane recognised in equity in the perbod in which they are declared, Dividends for
the year that are declared after the balance sheet date are disclosed as a subsequert event.

Interest ncome nnd cxpeise
Intcrest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within “interest
income” and “interest expense” in the statement of income using the eifective interest method,

The effective imerest method is a method of calculsting the amontised cost of a financial asset or a financial
Hability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest
rase is the rae that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments ar receipts thmough the expected life of the
financial imstrument or, when appropriate, a shorer periad (o the net carmying amount of the Maancial asset or
fmancial liability. When calcalsiing the effective interest raie, the Bank csiimates cash flows considering all
contraciusl terms of the financial insrument {for example, prepayment options) but docs nod conmider fuiure
eredil losses. The calculation inclodes all fees paid or discounts received between parties to the cortmet that are
an integral part of the effective inferest e,

Omce a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets kas been written down as a result of an impairment
loss, intenest income is recognised using the rate of interest used (o discounl the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impainment boss,

Fees and other income
Fees and other income are generally recognised om an acorual basis when the service has been provided.

Loan commitment fees ane deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment 1o the
effective inferest rale on the boan.

Termination bemefits

Termination benefils are payabde when employment is lerminated before the normal retirement dale, or whenever
an employee sccepls voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Bank recognises termination
hepefits when it is demonstrmbly commaited to either: serminating the employment of current employees acconding
tor & detaibed formal plan without possibility of withdmwal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage volunary redundancy, Benefits falling due more than 12 monshs after the balance sheet date are
discounted to present value.
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Farelgn currency transdation

i | y
liems inm the Mnancial sisiemends are measired using the cumency of the primary cconomic enviroament in which
the entity opembes (“the functbosal currency™), The financial stalcments are presented in Eastern Caribbean
dollars, which is the Bank™s funclional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are iranslated into the functional curmency using the exchange rtes prevailing st
the dates of the irmnssctions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resubting from the setilement of such transactions
and from the imnslation at vear-end exchange mies of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies ane recognised in the statement of income.

Comparstives
When: necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform o changes in presentation in the curment
WAL

3  Financial risk management

Strategy in using Minancial instrumenis

By its nature, the Bank™s actevities ane principally related to the use of financial instruments. The Bank secures
funds from variows lending agencies at both fixed and variable interest mtes and for various periods and seeks 1o
earm above average imlenest marging by investing these funds in high quality assets, The Bank secks 1o increase
these margins by consolidating short-lerm funds and lending for longer periods a1 higher rates while maintaining
sufficient Hgudity 1o meet all claims that may fall due.

The Bank also soeks 1o mise s interest marging by obtaining above average margins, net of allowances, through
lenafing to commercial and retail bormowers with 8 mnge of credit standing. Such exposures involve on balance
sheet loans and advances to customers,

Credit risk

The Bask takes on exposuns b credit rivk which is the risk that a counterpanty will be unable to pay amounts ia full
when due. Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date.
Significant changes in the cconomy, or in the health of a particular industry scgment that represents a concentration
i the Bank's portfolio, could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date.
Management therefore carcfully manages its exposure to credit risk.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or groups of bormowers and to industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revalving
basis and subject 1o monthly reviews, The Bank also undenakes supervised credit of Large projects wheneby loans
are dishursed in tranches. A progress repont is completed after each tranche is dishursed to ascertain the project
valiee, The Bank is exposed to potential loss only in the amount of loan disbursed.

Exposure 10 credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and polential borrowers
te meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
Expasure 1o credit risk s alvo managed in part by oblaining collaseral and comporate and personal guarntees
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Credit risk.., continsed

Crodit sk measurement - loans and advances

The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual counterparnties using internal mting tools tilored to the
wvarious calegaries of counterparty. They have been developed based on ibe East Cartbbean Central Bank
puidelines. Customers of the Bank are segmemted imto five rating classes. The Bank's rating scale, which is shawn
bebow, reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class, This means that, in principle,
exposures migrale between classes as the assessment of their probability of defaull changes. The rating 100ls are
kept under review and upgmded as nocessary.

Bank"s rating Duseription of the grade

Pass

Special mention
Sub-standard
Droubefial

Liass

LR

Risk limi L and mii i
The Bank manages, limils and controls concentrations of credit risk whenever they are idemtified - in particular,
to individual counterpanies and groups, and o indusries,

The Bank structsnes the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepled in relation
b o Bosrrovwer, of groups of borrowers, and to the indusiry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving
basis and subject 1o an annual or mene frequent review, when considered necessary by the Board of Directors.

The exposure to any one bomower including banks and brokers s further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and
off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery rsk limits in relatson to trading items. Actual exposures against
limmits are monstoned.

Exposure to credit risk s also managed through regular analysic of the ability of borrowers and potential bormowers
b0 meet imterest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where approgerinie.

Some other specilic control and miligstion measires ane outlined below,

fa} Colloteral

The Bank employs a range of polickes and practices to mitigale credi risk. The most iraditional of these is the mking
of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceplability of
specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The peincipal collateral types for loans and advances are:

Mongages aver residential propertics;

Charges over business assets such as premises, plant and equigment and motor vehicles;
Charges over financial insinmments such as debt securties and equites;

Assipnment 1o the Bask of key-man, life, bome owners, and motor vehicle insurances.

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate customens and individuals are generally secured. bn addithon, in order
1o minimise the credit loss the Bank will seek additional collateral firom the coanterparty as s00n as impainment
indicators are noticed Tor the relevant individual loans snd sdvances.

Collsteral held as security for financial assets other than loans and sdvances i determinesd by the nature of the
instrzment, Dbt securities, treasury amd ether cligible bills are generally unsecured.
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3 Finandal risk managemenl., continued

Credit risk._. comtimed

fh]  Crecdir-relmiva commitmenis

Commitments i extend credit represent undisbursed pontions of approved loans, With respest 1o creddit risk on
commitnsents to extend credit, ithe Bank is potentially exposed o o tn an amount equal o ihe total wnused
commitments, However, the likely amount of loss is less thain the tot] unused commitmesis, as most cammitmenis
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaming specific credit standards, The Bank monitors the term io
miatirity of credit commitments because loager-lerm commitments gencrally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shofter-term commitments.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The intemal and extemal rating systems described under “credit risk measurement™ focus more on credit-quality
mapping from the inception of the lending and investment activities. [n contrast, impairment provisions are
recognised for financial reporting purposes oaly for losses that have been incurmed at the balance sheet date hased
on objective evidence of impadrment.

The impairment provision shown in the balance sheet at year-end s derived from each of the five internal rating
grades, However, the majority of the impairment provisicn comes from the botiom three gradings. The table
below shows the percentage of the Bank's loans and advances and the assoclaied impairment provision For each of
the Bank's imtermal rating categorics:

0 1] 2008

Loans and [ podrmsent Loans and  Impairment
advances provisdon sdvances pirayislon
(%) (%) (%) (%)

Bank "s rating
I Pass 76,30 19,10 .77 1399
2 Special mention i M L6 5me .05
3 Sub-siandand im 71 586 .74
4 Doubeful 085 452 1064 6421
5 Loss 1277 7321 .50 12,01

The intemal mting tool assists management to determine whether ohjective evidence of impainment exists under
IAS 39, based on the following criteria set out by the Bank:

Delinguency in contractual payments of prncipal or inbensst:

Cash flow difficulties expersenced by the borrower (e.g. equily ratho, net income percentage of sales);
Breach of loan covenants or comditions;

Imitastion of bankrupicy proceedings:

Deterioration of the bormower's competitive position; and

Deteripration in the value of collsteral,

Thie Bank's palicy requires the review of individual financial assets that ane above materiality thresholds ol least
annually or more regularty when individual ciroumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually
assessed sccounds ane determined by an evaluation of the incimed loss at balance-sheet date on 3 case-by-case
basis, and are applied to all individually significamt accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral
held finchading re-confirmation of its enforceability b and the anticipated receipts for that individesl account.
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Credit risk...contimmed

2010 W
5 5
Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet nssets
Treasury bills TAIZS60 1A0,548
Deposits wilh banks and other linancial insdfutions T.2TL658 5910456
Loans and advances o customsers;

— Demand |aans B, 73,291 BL6ET.IT
= Morigage loans DRi2.210 30,5507
Other assets 450,268 378035

126,704, 247 121,405,490
Credit risk exposures relating to aff-balance sheel flems
Loan commitments  4.B63.363 5364087
151,568,250 126,769,577

The above table nepresents & worse case scenario of credit risk caposure (o the Bank at June 30, 2010 and 2009,
without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets,
the exposures st oul abive are based oa net canmying amounts as reported in the balance sheet

As shown above, 76.90 % of the toial maximum exposure is derived from loans asd advances io customers
(2009 - 88 8959}

Management is conflident i its ability to continue to conirel and sustain minimal exposare of credit risk (o the
Bank resulting from both its loan and advamoes partfolio based on the following:

s §2.66% (2009 - B2.56%) of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top two grades of the
intermal rating System;

* 3944% (2009 - 33.52%) of the boans and advances portfolio are considered o be neither pay due nor
impaired; and

= The Bank has introduced a more stringent sclection process upon granting loans and advances.
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Credit risk. .. comtinued

Lomns and advances
Loant and advances are summarised as follows:

2010 009

5 i

MNeither past due nor impaired A9 AN 114 40,828,719
Past dus bul not impaired 56,967 817 50,507,750
Impaired 19,520 335 21,469,329
arosa 115478 2666 121,805,798
Liess allowance for impakment lossss on loans and sdvances (8,920, T65) (9,1 19,3473
Mt 116,548 501 112,686,451

The total impairment provision for loans and advances (s 58,929,765 (2000 - $9.119,347) of which $6.941 479
{2008 « 57,747,624) represents the individually impaired loans and the remaining amount off $1,988 286 (2009 -
$1.371,723) represents the portfolio provision. Further information of the allowance for impairment losses oa
loans and advances 1o customers is provided in Notes 8 and 9.

fia) Lewuir el astvances meither past dive o bnpaired
The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impained can be
assessed by reference (o the internal rting system adopled by the Bank.

Demand Maortga
hoans I.uﬁ Totul
5 ] 5
Jume 33, 2000
Cirmdes
1. Pass JEETSR1A 1361430 49,490,114
2. Special mention - = -
3. Sub-standard = - o
Toisl 15875813 15614301 49 114
June M, 2605
Coracles
1. Pass 2607 329 14,221,190 40828719
2. Special mention - 2 L
3. Sub-standard = - =
Total 26,607 529 14.22], |90 40228719
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Credit risk. . connmued

(b} Loarns and advarces past dire bui ol impaired

Loans and advances less than 90 days past due are mot considered impaired, unless other mformation is available
oy indicale the comtrary. Gress amount of loans and advances by ¢lass 10 customers net of useamed micrest thar
wiere past due bul not impained were a5 folbows:

Demand Mortgage

loans Ioans Total
L £ $

Al June 3@, 2010
Past due up 1o 30 days 36,768,456 16,236,358 S1004.814
ot dise 30 - &0 days 372386 37,404 429,790
Past due 60 - ) days 430,634 55238 485,594

Past due over 90 days 2732953 314,361 3047319

40,304,436 16,663,381 56967817

Al Jume M, 2009
Past e up to 30 days 43, 182187 13,298,965 56481152
Past de 30 - 60 days 35,947 63,512 409,459
Past e &0 - W) days I8 35502 398,040
Past dise over 90 days | 936,563 282136 2,219,099

45,807,445 13,700,305 59,507,130

Upan initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation techniques
comiealy used for the comesponding assets.

() Loy gnd advances indfvidually Smpered

The tabde bebow shows the individually impaired loans and advances to customers before taking into consideration
the cash Mows from collateral held.

The breakdown of the gross amount of individually impaired boans and advances by class are as Tollows:

D rmanil Mortgage
livins

loans Toinl
5 % %
At June M1, 20100
Individuslly impaived loans 16,258,179 2.762.156 19,020,335
Al Jume 3, i
Individually impazred loans IB.-iﬂlﬁ.ﬁ}E 1067697 21,469,120
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Crediil rink . contimsd

Leans and advances renegotiates

Hestruciuring activities include extended payment amngemenis, approved exlemal marsgement plans,
medification and deferral of payments. Following restrocturing. a previously ovendise customer account is reset
to & normal stams and managed together wilh other similar accoumts. Restructuring policies and practices ane
based on indicators or criteria which, in ibe judgment of Bank's management, mdicate that payment will mos
likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous review. Restructuring is most commonly applied 1o
term loans, in panticular customer finance loans. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired totaled 53,056,770 as of June 30, 2000 (30009 - $6,360,5T8),

Repossessed collateral

At the end of 2010 the Bank had repossessed collsteral amounting to S32,000 (2009 - nil),

Geographbeal and economic concentrations of assels and Habilities

The Bank operates primarily in the Commonwealih of Dominica and the exposure 1o credit risk is concentrated
im his area.

Economic sector risk concentrations within the customer loan porifolio were as follows:

] [1] 2009

] § (O0"s) = 5 (DD0's)

Educanion 2415 35322 039 7019

Maomgage 2413 .27R 2544 0,990

Tourism 2L11 6 A48T 19.28 25,481

Infustrial 16,77 1,037 13 s 16,644

Agricubiural 478 5,961 5.75 6,999

CRber consumers 493 1846 e | 6,340

[hsiribiition and commence .16 b (] 0.27 133
Total belore deduction Tor allowance

For losses on loans and sdvances 125478 121,806
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3  Financial risk management. .. comtinmwed

Market risk

The Bank tzkes on exposire 10 marke ndks, which & the risk thai ihe fyir valuee or foture cash flows of a
fenancial istrament will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions
in intenes rate pnd equity products, all of which ane exposed o peneral and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rtes, credil spreads, foreign eachange
rates and equity prices. The Bank’s exposuncs to markel risks anse from its non-trading portfiolios.

Mon-trading porifolios primarily arise from the inferest mie management of the Bank"s retail and commercial
banking assets and liabilities. Non-trading pontfolios also consist of equity risks arising from the Bank’s
available-for-sale mvestments

Prici risk

The Bank is exposed 1o equity securities price risk because of investments beld by the Bank and classificd on
the balance sheet as available for sale. To mamage s price risk arising from investments in equity securties,
ihe Bank diversifies iis porifolio,

Al June 30, 2010, if equity securitics prices had been 10¥% higherfower with all other variables held consiant,
equity for the year would have been 513,333 higherflower as a resull of the increaseddecrease in fair valoe of
available-for-sale equity securities.

risk
The Bank takes on exposure (o effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency eachange rates on its
financial position and cash Nows, primarily with respect (o the United States dollar (US5) and Buro, The Board
of Directors sels limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total which are monitored daily, The Bank"s
expasane W currency rak is minimal with respect (o the USS since the exchange mte of the Eastern Casibbean
dolar (ECS) to the S5 has been formally pegged at ECS2.70 = USS1 00 since 1974,

At June 30, 2000, if the Currency haad weakeneid'sarengibensd by 5% against the Euro winb all other variables
Il constam, profit for the vear would have been $169.532 lowerhigher as a result of foreign exchange
lossew/gains on iranslation of Evro-denominaled borrowings,

The folbowing inble summarises the Bank"s exposure to foreign cumency exchanpe rabe risk af June 30, 2000,
Incluided in the table are the Bank®s assets and liabilities at camying amount, calegorised by cumency,
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3

Financial risk management.. confaned

Currency risk _continued

Concentration of carrency risk = on- and off-balance sheet Ananclal instruments

As at June M, 2000

Assels
Cash and balances with Central Bank

Treasury bills

Deposits with banks and other financial institations

Loans aid advances 1o cusiomerns
Available-Tor-sale investments
Orther assets

Total financial asseis

Linbilities

Due o cusiomers

Bormwed fumils

(her labilities

Total financial lsbilihes

Net on-balance sheet Minanclal position
Credit eommitments

As at Jume 30, HHE

Toaal Ninancial assets

Total financial labidics

Met on-balance sheel NMnancisl position

Credit commitments

ECS Uss EURD Total
22,630 - - 212630
2432960 = - IAMLYGD
4449343 2823315 - TITL658
116,548,501 - = 116,548,501
1,252,340 - - LISI M0
450,268 - = 450,268
125,156,042 2833315 = 127979357
10,824,454 - = 10824454
23,720,265 54398323 4.TI3E4E B2 R9L406
3, 186550 - - 5786550
40,591 H i | a9
BATEALTEN (S1STS008) (4.713848) 28475908
863863 - - 24863863
[25,784,432 - = |25, TR4,432
20.209.308 32737400 6,066,351  99.01 3,000
5,575,123 (52,737.400) (6,066,381) 26771342
536,087 - = 5064087
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3 Financial risk management. .. contined

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest e risk is the risk that ihe futuse cash Mows of a financial instrament will Mectusie because
of chamges in marked inderesi rates. Falr valoe interest mite risk 15 the nsk that the value of a financial instrument
willl Muctuase becaise of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of
Muctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest mibes on bach ks fair valee and cash fow risks. Interes
margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce or ereste losses i ihe event thal unexpecicd
muovements arise. The Board of Directors sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken.

The table below summarises the Bank's cxposure (o interest rbe risks. Incloded in the table are the Bank'"s
asxeis aned liahilitics al carmying amounis, eategorisad by the earlier of contractual repricing or madurity dates.

Non-
Over interest
| ¥ear  1-5 Years Syears  bearing Tatal
5 5 $ § 5
As al June 33, 2000
Cash and balances with Central Bank = - - 22,630 Indn
Treasury bills 2,432,960 - - - Ld31960
Deposits with banks and other
fenancial instituthons 071058 - LELELY = T21%,658
Loans and ndvances (0 cusiomery 18,286,835 45020704 53238950 - 116548501
Avvailable-for-sale investments - - = 1,252340 1,252,340
Oither assers - - = 450,268 450,268
Total Meancial ssscts 2T,TOLASE 45022706 SAAIR G0 1, TIS2IE 127979357
Do b cusdomers 1808621 50015833 - = 10824454
Bormowed lumds DR BR9 31415597 41,571,950 -  BLEDIAM
Other libilities - - - 5786550 5.786,559
Total Mnancial linbikites 15,693,510 36451430 41571930 5786559 99503449
Net interest repricing gap 12,098,943 1 11,867,010 (4,061,321) 28,475,908
As al June M, 20079
Total financial assets IT.351,096 4238483 S1DIATEG 3002432 125.7R4.432
Total fingncisl labiliics 15186757 3R 958888 40019939 4750505 99,013,089
Net Interest repricing gap 12,164,639 3320040 12115847  (R39.083) 26771341
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3 Financial risk management. .. coatimmed
Interest rate risk. . comtinued

The tabbe below summarizes the effective interest rate by major cumencies for monetary financial mszruments
ol carried at fair value though profit or boss

ECS LsS ELURD
As at Jume 30, 3000
Asseis
Treasiary hills 603 - -
Dr=paosits with hanks and siher inancial instinmions 20 - =
Loans and sdvances o cusiomers 7.08 = =
Linbilitics
Dhae {0 customers 4,50 - -
Bowrowed funds 6,91 151 2.0
Sevstriviry anafyses

Cash flow interest rale risk areses from borowings at variable rates. At June 30, 2010f variable interest rates
had been 1'% highesflower with all other variables Beld constamt, profit for the yenr would have been $315,563

highenlower.

Linquidity risk

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its availsble cash resources from maturing deposits and loan deaw
downs. The Bank does mot maimain cash resources to meet all of these needs a5 experience shows that a
minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Board
sets lmits on e minimuam proportion of matuging funds available o meet such calls and on ihe mindminm
bevel of other borrowing facilities that should be placed to cover withdrmwals st unexpected levels of demand.

The matching and congrolled mismatching of the maturities and inlerest rates of assets and lishilities is
fundamental 1o the management of the Bank. It is umusual for banks 10 be completely matched, as transaciod
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of lossass,

The maturities of assets and labilsties and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, inlenest-bearing
liabilities s they mature, are important factors in assessing the lgquidity of the Bank and its exposure 1o
changes in interest rates,
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3 Financial risk mansgemenl. .. comninmed
ul]:lﬂﬂh}' risk . comtimued

Non-derivative cash Gows

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under nom-derivative financial liabilities by
memaining contractual maturitbes ail the balance sheet date, The amounds disclosed in the able are the
comtractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the inherent Houidity risk based on expected
undiscounied cash inflowa.

1 Yenr 5 Years  Over 5 years Talsl
- 5 5 5
As al Jane M), 2000
Financial Hubilities
e b clustomers 5.808,62 1 5.517. 795 = 11, 326416
Borrowed funds 12,586,884 40,181,750 49265377 103,034,020
Ouher liabilities 3252877 2833732 - 5,756,559
Total financial liabilitics _ 2648332 49233286 49265377 120,146,995
As al Jupe 30, 2000
Financisl linhilities
Dhie b customers 3,048, 862 Su620.542 10,678,404
Borrowed funds IL2I2.286 44083684 40877, |68 107, 128,138
hber lasbalities 1036645 1,714,860 - 4,751.505
Total financial labilities __ 21297793 5,423,086 49827, 168 12550047

(HT-baliwmee sheet items

(i3} Loscs comvmelfamearis
The alates of the eontractual amounts of the Bank's ofF-balance sheet financial insmiments that commit it ©
axtend credil to customers and miber Tacilities {Nale 265, are summarised in ibe table below,

1 Year 25 Years Tatal
5 % 5
As ail Jumne M), 20
Loan commitments LL509,152 11354710 24863861
Al Jume 30, 00
Lixan cosmmil menis 5304087 - 364 087
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3  Finencial risk management,  cornimied

Fuir valses of financisl assets and linbilities

Fair valee amounts represent estimales of ibe consideration that would currently be agreed upon between
knowledgeable willing parties who are under no compulsion io act and s best evidenced by a quoted market
value, if one exists. The following methods and assumptions were used 10 estimate the fair value of financial
mnsbrimeils,

The fair values of cash resources, other assets and livbilities, cheques amnd other iems in iransiy and due io other
banks are assumed o approximate their cammying values dise 1o ihelr shom-term nature,

Lowuts and advwices fo cicstomers

Loans and sdvances are net of proviskms for impairment, The estimated fair values of losns and advances
represend the discounted amound of estimated future cash Mow expected (o be received. Expected cash (lows ane
discounted s curment market mte to determine fnir valoe.

Tvestment securities
Assens classified as available for sale are measured af fair value,

e 1o other bonkx and cuntomer, oher depotiis aad other Borrowed fimaly
The estinuaied Fair value of deposits with me stated matarity, which includes non-intenest bearing depiosits, is
ik amoum repayable oa demand.

Deposits pavable on a fined date are 21 rates, which nefect market conditions and are assumed 1o have fair
values which approximate camying values,

The table below summarises the camying amounts and fuir values of those financial asseis and liabilithes mod
presenled on the Bank's balapce shect ot their fair valse.

Ca vilai Fair value
2010 2009 2ia e
] 5 5 5
Filuancial asseis
Loans and sdvances 1o cusiomers 116,548,501 112636451 116,544,501 112,686,451
Financial liabilities
Due (o cusiomess 10824454 10,167,138 10813424 10,155,023
Borrowed funds HEEO3 d3s R4 004445 71,790,168 TU. 202,092
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3 Financial risk management. .. continued

Fuir value hicrarchy

IFES 7 specifies a hicrarchy of valuation technigues based on whether the inputs to those valuation technigees
are observable or unohservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inpuis refleet the Bank's markel assumplions, Thews two types of mputs bave created the
following fair value hierarchy:

e Level | = Quoted prices {enadjusted) in active markets for idemtical asscts or Habilities. This level includes
listed equily securities amnd debt instruments on sxchanges,

» Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the assct or
lisbility, cither digecily (that is, as prices) or indirecily (thai i, derived froam prices).

# Level 3 - imputs for the asset of liability that ane mot based oa observable market data (unohservable inpatad,
This leveel includes equily nvestments and debt mstmiments with significant unohservable componenls.

This hierarchy requires the wse of shservable market data when avnilabie, The Bank considers relevant and
ohservable market prices in its valuations where possible.

Msseis meeasared ui Toir value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
5 : ] % 5
Availahle for sale invesinienis
= Eijuily securilies - 17234 1,080,000 1152 140
Capital management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity” on the face of balance
shects, are;

* Tocomply with the capital requinements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Bank operates;

= Tosafeguard the Bank®s ability to continue 23 3 poing concern so (bt it can conlinoe to provide retums for
sharehalders and benefs for other stakeholders; and

*  Tomaintain 4 stroag capital base o support the development of 18 business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulasory capatal are monsiored daily by the Bank's managemeni.
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4  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying sccounting policies

“The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that afTect the reported amounts of assets and Fabilities within iha
next Mmancial yeas, Estimates and judgements are contineally evalusted and sre based on Bistorical experience
and other factors, including expeciations of futune events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
clrcumsiances,

a) fmpairment losses on howns awd advances

The Bank reviews its koan porifolio (o assess impairment ol least on o quanedy basis, In determining wheiber an
impairment loss should be recorded o the statement of income, the Bank makes judgement as to whether there is
any observable data indicating that there s a measurable decresse in the estimated futune cash Mows from a
portfodio of loans before ihe decneass can be dentified with an individaal loan in that portfolio. This evidence
may inchide ohservable data indicating that there has been an sdverse change in the payment status. of borrowers
in a group, or lecal economibe conditions thai correlate with defaults on assets in the group, Management uses
estinmates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk charctenstics and objective evidence of
impairment sinilar to those in the portfolie when scheduling its futwre cash lows. The methodology and
nszumptions wsed for estimating both the amount and timing of futere cash Nows ame reviewed regalarly o
reduce any differences between loss estimates amd sciual foss experience. To the exient ibai ihe net present value
of estimated cash flows differs by +/-5%, the provision would be estimated $1,004,6400 lower or higher.

b} Foipanlrnierd of eveeiladile- for-sale equnlfy fnvetments

The Bank determines thai available-for-sale equity mvestiments ane impained when there has been a significant o
profonged decling in the air value below is cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires
fudgement. In making this judgement, the Bank evalustes smong other factons, when there s evidencs of
deterioration in the financial bealih of the mvestee industry and sector performance, chanpges in lechnology and
operational and fimancing cash Mows. There were no declings in fair valee below cost considered significant or
prolomged as st Jume 30, 2000

5 Cash and halances with Central Bank

2010 2009

$ -

Cash in hand L1 1.100
Balances with Central Bank 21,530 3,110,502
Ischuded in cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 22,630 3,111,602
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i Treasury hills

2010 2009
5 L]
Treasury bills (Note 24) 2,432,960 2,430,548

Treasury bills are debt securities issued by the Government of Dominica for a term of three imonths. The

weighied average effective inlerest rie in 2000 is G.03% (20 - GUO35),

Depositx with banks and other linancial institutions

2o 2009

5 %

liems in the course of colbection with other hanks (Noie 24) 5161197 3.ag4 808
Placements with banks and other fimancial instifuticns L1461 2525621
7271658 A D045

The weighied average elfective interest rate in respect of imerest bearing deposits in 2010 & 2.04%

{200 - 4.28%),

Dhuaring the yeas, the Bank reconded impairment losses amounting o $633,000 on certain investments from a
fimancial mstibiton, Placements in other financial institulions that are doe as of June 30, 2010 amowunt 1o

£673,798 for which the Bank is actively pursaing.

Loans and sdvances (o cuslomers

g 2s
5 5
Demand loans 5 20N, 543 0,215,564
Mongage loans 30,277 683 31,590,234
125,478,260 121,505,798

Less allowance for impairment kases on loans amd

sdvances (MNok ) {8929, T65) (9,119,347}

116,548,501 112,686,451
Current 18,286,834 18,752,496
Mom-cusrent DR 261 665 931.933.955
116,548,501 112,686,451

The weighted a effective interesl rale on productive loams stated o amortised cost at June 30, 2000 is

7.08% (2009 - 8.74%),
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9 Allevwance For impalrment losses on bans pwl sdvanoes

010 200
$ §
Demand lonns
Al beglnning of year B S28.190 6, 10,4405
Provision for impatrmend losses 1,504 867 1218310
Amounts recovered during the year 20,791 TEED]
Transfer from morngage loans - 580,249
Wiritten-off during the year as uncollectible (1,589,556) (1559465}
At end of year BA64,292 8,528,190
Morigage loans
At beginning of year 591,157 1,327 642
Pravision for impaimment losses A5, 458 -
Transier w demand loans - (580,2:9)
Amounts recovered during the vear 14,8486 44671
Wratten-off daring the year as uncollectible i 60K, 026) {160,907
At end of year 65473 591,157
8,015 765 9, 119347
10 Available-Tor-sale invesimenis
ELL ] 2005
5 5
Bauity securiibes - at fair value:
= Listed 128,330 143,330
= Undisted 1,024,000 1,124,000
1,252,340 1,267 340
Movements of the Bank"s available-for-sake investments follow:
Zoln 2009
§ 5
Al beginning of year 1,267 340 1. 257,340
L'rlmﬁ!'-hnd ganni b ) from changes in fair value (Note 17) & M) {20,000
Impairment losses {200, 00Ml) =
1LI53M0 1,267 340
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11  Property, plant and equipment

Furniture
Muotor and  Computer
Land  Buildings vehiches equipment cqguipment Tatal
5 5 5 5 5 %
At June 30, 2008
Cost or valustion 84,275 5983300 PA3,000  B46,737 BIT899 7965221
Accumulated depreciation = _(1LAD300) (R4 2000 (6984TH)  (6T022R) (2942.2)5)
Met book amount [84,275 4482001 48 3200 148,159 147671 5,013,006
Year ended June 30, 2000
Ohpening met book amount 84,275  4.484,001 &8 500 148,259 147,671 5013006
Addizioas - = - 144,243 42,592 191,235
Disposals = - - {18410 - (1.B41)
Accunmulated depreciatbon
on disposals - - - 1,771 - 1,771
Deprecintion (Mote 20) - (L9667 (122000 (98,1605 {(I10884) (340901}
Closing net book amount 184275 4364034 RLLL 198,272 TO.770 4,863,260
At Jume 30, 2009
Cieat o valuation 184,275 5983310 | 33,000 993,139 BELED] R 153605
Accumulated depreciation = (1618976) (964000 (794.867) (TELA12) (3.201,355)
Met book amotm 184,275 364,334 36,600 198,272 T9.779 4,863,260
Year ended June M, 2000
Opening net book amount 184,275 4,364,334 36600 198,272 779 4,863,260
Mdiditions - 194,733 - 8,917 61,832 37482
Disposals (143.748)  (203,765) - 7.715) - [385238)
Accumilated depreciation
on disposals - 35,235 - - - 55,235
Deprecistion (Note 20) = (I22462) (122007 {|03,058) [(BR&1H)  {3M6.338)
Clesang net book amount 40,527 4,284,075 24,400 152416 52903 4554411
At June 30, 204010
Cost or valuation #0527 5970.273 133,000 1,050.34] 922711 BI16,560
Accumulated depreciation BA7.925)  (B&0.730
et book amount 40,527 4.284.075 24,400 152416 52,900 4554401

The cost of the land where the office building is sitmated is not yet nefected in the books sinee the tile 15 still

being discussed with other government agencies,
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fexpressed in Exdern Canbbean dollars)
14 Borrowed fonds

il L

5 5

Canibbean Developeent Bank 51,981 842 45,800,403
Dominica Social Secanity 18,780,265 20, 290, 65
European Investment Bank A TIAEAR £, (i, VAL
Ciovernment of Dominica 5,000,000 5 ), CHOMEN
Republic of China L184.567 AR5 DAR
Caisse Centrale De Co-operation Economique 231,914 451,900

B2 A6 B4 445

Current 9 RE4 BRS I 13T B0
MNon-curmen T, YT 54T 71,956,550

— S0 A3% 54,094,446

Thewe loans gamn inlerest al rales ranging from 2% 1o 2% and are guaranteed by the Govermment of Dominica,

15 (hMher lahilitics

11 2

5

{ Az restabed)

Agency linbilnaes 33176927 2.465,541

Deferred moome 471,849 d1A451

[hvidemnds pavable 250,44 S00,000

Ciranis 178,709 230,230
Others 2080923 1551732

6258 408 5.167.958

Carrent T A21386 ERLHE R

MNon-carrent 2 R3T.0x2 1976040

6,258,408 5,167,058

Cirats mclude funads receved from European Development Fund and Eurmpean Lineon for nstibutsonal
strengthenng and for the benefin of the Bank's customers.

Apgency liabilities are fimds issued 1o the Bank by the Government of Dominica and other bocal agencies b be
used fof specific purposes, and for which the Bank acts as execwiing and collecting agent. The Bank carms
agency foes as prescribed by contractunl agrecment. The funds belong to the Govemment of Dominica and

kol mpencies.
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16 Share capital
2010 209
$ H
Authorized:

S000,000 ocrdinary shares with a 55 par value

Issuecl and fully paid:
3508 ordinary shares 17547,631 17,547,631

Section DA of Chapier 74:03 of the Laws of Dominica empowers the Bank 1o redeem its shares af any thme
after the expiration of ten years from the date of issue, Shares ssued (o the Governmend of Dominica are not
redesmakile,

Based on the statutory mules and orders Moo 57 of 1993 of the Government of the Commonwealth of Dominica
titled, Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank (Subscription and Holdings of Shares)
Regulations 1993, the Dominica Social Security may subscribe ose million ordinary shares a1 35 par value and
be entithed 1o an annual dividend of nofl kess than 3% of the par value of the shares subscribed,

1T Heserves

2000 2009
& %
i As restated)
Gieneral resemve B2 2R, 234
Santutary neserve A5 1 i LR B
Special reserves 1,443,070 1,372,234
Revaluation reserve = available-for-sals invesiments 2 25 0040 o | LA
T 1450 7.5 19,284

Movements in reserves were as follows:
0 Jnaa
5 5

(remeral reserve

Al beginning and end of year .24 BA.234

Prior to July 1, 1978, the Government of Dominica paid cerain administrative expenses of the Bank. The
Government decided to waive the amount of $38,234 due to il and instructed 1the Bank (o creste 3 gencral reserve
for this amount.
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17 Reserves,, coutinied

0G5

010 5

5 {As restated)

Simtulory reserve

At beginning of year, s previously reporied - 5 EIT Ta4
Prior perbod adjustment (MNote 28) - {12451

Ay beginning of year, as restated 038 BlG 2. 717311
Transfer from retsined camings 3546, 330 321,505
Anend of year 146 G OM8.816

This represents pwenty-five percent (23% ) of the net eamings of the Bank for exch financial year allocated 1o
the reserve account as required by Section 20 aof Chapler 74203 of the Laws of Dominica Revised Edition,

L] 200
§ 5
Special reserves
Caribhean Development Bank provision
At beginning and end of year 1,122 41,122
Foreign exchange equalization
At beginning of year AL 112 W8, 058
T mm from retained eamdngs 70,836 67,100
Foreign exchange loss utilization = kit (186}
Ad end af vear 1,000,948 L e
1,443,070 LATEIN

Under the provisson of Canbbean Development Bank (CRB) loan 16/5FR-D Section @ (%) for agricul taral
production, the Bank is requined to sei aside pn amount representing 13 of camed interest per annum on each
sub-boan. This amount s 10 be usad |s such a manner as the CDB may from tinee o time delermine,

Special reserves include accwmulated innsfers from retained camings based on Earopean Investment Bank Loan
Agreement Section 6.07 requiring interest received by the Bank on sub-loans in excess of 5% per annum (o be
crediled on a special account called Foreign Exchange Equalization Fund (FEEF) The balance on the FEEF shall
ablract interest a1 an annual rate comesponding to the monthly rate payable by the Bank, for deposits in Eastern
Caribbean Dollass of equivalent size.

mla 0049
5 $
Eevalaation reserve — avallable-for-sale investmenis
Al beginning of vear 20,000 {459,900
Uniealized gaindloss) from changes m fair vl (MNote 140 S000 {20,000y
Transfer of losses to statément of comprehensive incoms - AL G
Ad el of year 25,0000 20,000
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{espeessed in Easiemn Caribbean dollars)

18 MNet interesi Income

Inierest incame
Loans and advinoes
Deposits with banks

Interest expense
Long-lenm debi
Inierest on deposiis

19 (ther operaling income

Refund fram EIB

Giain on foreign exchange

Commitmeend fiees

Agpency fees

Administrative fiees

Giaiin oa disposal of propeny, plant and equipment
Others

I (rher operating expenses

SiafT costs (Mote 21)
Aclminestrative expenses (MNole 22)
Hinlkding e<oupancy expenses
Depreciation {Mote 11}

2010 009
5 £
29T RTI 10,235,876
326874 ITIONE
10,306,745 10608 204
(3,437,749) i(3643,687)
(2652521 {432 05y
3,703,001 ) (4075777
6,601,744 6533117
2009
010 4
5 (A5 restated)
D372 &
JER,A93 03,326
18,714 7,181
172,243 134,361
0,000 30,000
27,722 245
657 Bdhi 154,629
2416941 1.234.752
oo o049
5 %
A125.610 3,547,080
HE4 54 H79.575
11551 405073
2608 EETETN
4.818,043 4,063 548
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Motes o Financial Statements
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{expressed in Eastern Cantbbean dollors)

21 SiafT cosis

2000 2004
5 5
Salaries and wages 288,07 1,839,606
Social securily cosls 113,295 055
Giroup insimpes 51,259 N5y
Cither stndl costs BT1043 540,208
3,125,610 2,547,989

11 Adminkstralive expenses
2010 a1
§ 5
Legal and professional fees 177456 205,350
Dircctons cmolumenis 145973 150,234
Advertising 10,877 41,556
Printing, stationery, and oifice supplics W ALe BOL 164
Telephane, postage and fax B4,7T6 75.153
Subscriptions and donations 63,799 25,630
Motor vehicle expenses 44 BRR 37,195
Repairs and maintenance of fumiture and equipment 42467 28,901
Amnual repori ] eyl | 7.714
Insurnce #1150 10,355
Miscellansous expenses 54465 17.259
H54.544 (79,575

23 Dividends

The Bank declared 5% dividends amounting to $250,000 (2009 - $250,000) with respect to the ordinary shares
he=ld by ibhe Dominica Social Security.
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

INotes o Financinl Statements
June M0, 2010

{expressed in Exstern Caribbean dollars)

24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the staténsent of cash Aows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with

less than 3 monihs matarity:

Cash and balamaes with Ceniral Bank

Treasury bills

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

25 Related party transactions

2010 2009
5 3
22,630 3111602
2,432,960 2,430,548
5,161,197 3384835

1,616,787 8,926,985

Parties are considerad io be related if one pany has ibe ability 1o control the other pany of exercise significant
inflisence over the other panty i making financial or operational decishons.

A number of banking transactions are enierned into with related panies in the povmal course of business. These
tranaactions were carried out on commercial terms and conditions, at markel miss.

Al year-end, Directors of the Bank snd companies in which they have an interest hadd no loans or fixed deposits
with the Bank but guaranteed ksans with cutstanding balances of $38,312

In 2000, the total remuneration paid o Directors and key management personnel was SE76,769 (2009 - 5991,177).

The Bank's outstanding obligations 1o iis related parties are o follows:

Dominica Social Security
Government of Dominica

26 Contingent liabilities and commitmenls

2010 2

5 5

18, THD, 265 20,260,655

5, 05001000 5,000,000
23,780,268 25.200,665

As at year-end, loans and advances approved by the Bank but not yet disbursed, amounted 1o approximately

$24,863.863 (2009 — $5,364,087),

27 Taxation

Under the provision of Chapter 7403 Sections 32 of the Laws of Dominica, the Bank is exempted from the

payment of income fax.
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Dominica Agricultural Industrial and Development Bank

Motes 1o Financial Siatemenis
June 30, 2000

{expressed in Exstern Caribbean dollnrs)

28 Prior period adjustment

Prior period adjustment pertains to commitment fees which the Bank previously reporiod as income upon receipt
from its customers. These commitment fees ane now being amorised over the term of the loan and the unamonised
portion are presented as deferred income under other liabilities. As a result of the prior period adjustment, retained
carmings as of June 30, 2000 and 2008 were sdjusted for its effects.

The reconciliation of the increasing/{decreasing ) effects of prior period adjustments as they apply to equity and

profi Follows:
009 LI
$ §
Equity
As previously neported 1,635,504 30,230,259
Deferred meome (416453) [481,733)
As resinted 31,222 451 25,750,526
Accordingly, Reserves were aluo adjusted in 2009 by 25% of 1he decrease amounting o 51064, 103
(D008 = 1 20,429).
2004
¥
Prafit
As previously reporied 1,220,741
Increase in commitment fees 65,280
Ax restated 1.286021
The effect on ibe balence sheet is as follows:
o 1]
5
Other liabilities
As previously repored 4,751,505
Deferred income 416,433
As pestaled 5,167,058
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